

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON LAW AND GOVERNMENT

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Monday, June 18, 2012
10:15 a.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILMAN WILLIAM K. GREENLEE, CHAIR
COUNCILMAN BILL GREEN
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON
COUNCILMAN JAMES KENNEY
COUNCILMAN DENNIS O'BRIEN

BILLS 120531 and 120108
RESOLUTIONS 120540 and 120119

- - -

1

2

COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Good

3

morning, everybody. This is the

4

Committee on Law and Government.

5

For the record, we have a

6

quorum consisting of Councilman Kenney,

7

the Vice Chair of the Committee,

8

Councilman Green, Councilman Henon and

9

myself, Bill Greenlee, the Chair.

10

Ms. Marconi, will you please

11

read the first bill and resolution before

12

us today, please.

13

THE CLERK: Bill No. 120108, an

14

ordinance providing for the submission to

15

the qualified electors of the City of

16

Philadelphia of the proposal set forth in

17

a Resolution approved by Council

18

proposing an amendment of The

19

Philadelphia Home Rule Charter relating

20

to the information that must be provided

21

with the annual operating budget, annual

22

capital budget, and capital program; and

23

authorizing the appropriate officers to

24

publish notice and to make arrangements

25

for the special election.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 Resolution 120119, resolution
3 proposing an amendment to the
4 Philadelphia Home Rule Charter relating
5 to information that must be provided with
6 the annual operating budget, annual
7 capital budget, and capital program,
8 requiring the Finance Director to provide
9 such information, and providing for the
10 submission of the amendment to the
11 electors of Philadelphia.

12 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
13 you.

14 Ms. Rhynhart, would you
15 identify yourself for the record and
16 proceed.

17 (Witness approached witness
18 table.)

19 MS. RHYNHART: Good morning,
20 Councilman Greenlee and members of City
21 Council. My name is Rebecca Rhynhart.
22 I'm the City's Budget Director, and I'm
23 here to testify on Resolution 120119 and
24 Bill No. 120108.

25 Resolution 119 proposes an

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 amendment to the Philadelphia Home Rule
3 Charter relating to information that must
4 be provided with the annual operating
5 budget, annual capital budget, and
6 capital program; requires the Finance
7 Director to provide such information, and
8 provides for the submission of the
9 amendment to the electors of
10 Philadelphia. Bill 120108 sets forth the
11 ballot question to put that proposed
12 amendment to the voters.

13 Specifics about the type of
14 information to be required are included
15 in Bill No. 120109 and Bill No. 120110
16 for the operating and capital budgets,
17 respectively. Those bills are not up for
18 consideration today. By way of example,
19 Bill 120109 would require the Finance
20 Director to submit with the proposed
21 annual operating budget ordinance
22 complete program-based budgeting data for
23 each function for which appropriations
24 are made in the proposed budget,
25 including both cost and performance data.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 Bill 120110 would require the submission
3 with the proposed annual capital budget
4 ordinance and six-year capital program
5 complete cost-benefit analysis for each
6 capital project for which appropriations
7 are made in the proposed program,
8 including both return on investment and
9 payback data.

10 The Administration supports
11 moving to program-based budgeting and has
12 taken several steps towards this goal.
13 The Fiscal '13 budget was the second year
14 in which the City produced a separate
15 report detailing the cost of both direct
16 and indirect costs for each department.
17 In addition, the Mayor's proposed '13
18 through '17 Five Year Plan is the first
19 Five Year Plan to include a section on
20 performance measures titled "Performance
21 Measures and Budget Trends" which details
22 performance measures for many City
23 departments alongside budget amounts from
24 Fiscal '08 to the proposed budget for
25 Fiscal '13 so that the reader can see how

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 funding and performance measures have

3 trended over a several-year period.

4 Lastly, the Quarterly City Manager's

5 Report includes data on performance

6 measures for many City departments.

7 To achieve the goal of

8 implementing program-based budgeting, the

9 Chief Innovation Officer of the City is

10 exploring the purchase of a new IT system

11 to allow the City to fully move to this

12 new way of budgeting. Without this

13 technology, it would be extremely

14 difficult to fully integrate

15 program-based budgeting and performance

16 measures.

17 While the Administration

18 applauds the goal of Resolution 120119,

19 it cannot support the resolution at this

20 time due to the inability to move

21 completely to program-based budgeting by

22 Fiscal '14. The Administration will

23 continue to work towards the goal of

24 achieving this.

25 This concludes my testimony,

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 and I'm happy to answer any questions.

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
4 you, Ms. Rhyhart.

5 The Chair recognizes Councilman
6 Green.

7 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you.
8 I just would like to get a few things on
9 the record.

10 How is the budget detail today
11 maintained currently and how is it
12 prepared?

13 MS. RHYNHART: How is the
14 budget detail maintained?

15 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Yes.

16 MS. RHYNHART: I mean, there's
17 line item information that goes into the
18 detail of each class of funding for each
19 department.

20 COUNCILMAN GREEN: How many
21 spreadsheets are used in maintaining the
22 budget detail?

23 MS. RHYNHART: There's many,
24 many spreadsheets. It needs -- I would
25 say we probably do need -- not probably.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 We do need a new system to do it. I
3 mean, I can't say offhand how many, but,
4 I mean, there's a thousand pages of the
5 budget detail. There could be close to
6 that amount in Excel spreadsheets.

7 COUNCILMAN GREEN: So close to
8 a thousand Excel spreadsheets are how we
9 do our budget?

10 MS. RHYNHART: That's the
11 budget detail, yes.

12 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you.
13 No further questions.

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
15 you.

16 MS. RHYNHART: Just to add
17 something to that, I think that that's
18 the reason why we're working with the
19 Chief Innovation Officer to upgrade the
20 technology here so that we can do things
21 in a way that's more in line with the
22 time that we're in.

23 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: And let
24 me be clear. If the ballot question goes
25 on and is approved, it authorizes the

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 creation by ordinance. So Council would
3 still have to come back and do that,
4 correct, to ask for that information?

5 MS. RHYNHART: I think that's
6 correct, but the issue with approving the
7 resolution now to put it on the ballot is
8 that it's difficult for the
9 Administration to support that when we
10 don't have a full, clear understanding of
11 what that means. And if the goal is to
12 get performance-based budgeting in by
13 Fiscal '14, I don't think that's
14 possible. So we'll work with you on it.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:
16 Councilman Green.

17 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you.
18 From my perspective, the goal
19 is to update the eight classes of budget
20 information that are available to us
21 under the Charter, which was put forth in
22 1952, when the tools available in terms
23 of budgeting and the information that can
24 be made available in every other major
25 city in the country and in every major

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 corporation, et cetera, can be made
3 available to us. In terms of the
4 ultimate timing of that, you know,
5 whenever the Administration can do it,
6 they can do it.

7 MS. RHYNHART: Okay. Great.
8 Thanks.

9 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you.

10 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: That was
11 my point, that if it's not ready at the
12 time, it's not ready, because it doesn't
13 say FY14 in the question, right? So...

14 MS. RHYNHART: Okay.

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:

16 Councilman Kenney.

17 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
18 Mr. Chairman.

19 Could you all -- this is not
20 directly your responsibility, but since
21 you're checking on status of upgrades and
22 things. We had passed an ordinance, I
23 guess, last year that would require
24 contractors on site to self-report to
25 L&I, along with their subs, within 24

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 hours of their appearing on a work site
3 that's permitted by the City, and L&I at
4 the time kind of half -- well, lukewarmly
5 supported the measure; however, used the
6 same reasoning, that they couldn't do it
7 right away because they didn't have
8 technology.

9 Is there some way that you can
10 make a request to L&I to see if they're
11 anywhere near that situation?

12 MS. RHYNHART: Sure.

13 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Because,
14 again, the purpose for the bill was that
15 money is going out the door here left and
16 right. Revenue says everything is fine,
17 but we have a difference of opinion. At
18 least at the L&I stage, I can find out
19 who is on the job site, who is licensed,
20 who is not, who is paying taxes, who is
21 not, who is paying their employees in
22 cash and who is not, and that would be a
23 big help. And since it's self-reporting,
24 there's no additional burden on License
25 and Inspection.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 So if you could ask them to
3 kind of give us an update where they are,
4 if they're anywhere, I would appreciate
5 it.

6 MS. RHYNHART: Sure. I'd be
7 happy to. I'll get back to you.

8 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you.

9 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
10 you.

11 Any further questions?

12 (No response.)

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
14 none, thank you, Ms. Rhynhart.

15 Is there anyone else here to
16 testify on this bill and resolution?

17 (No response.)

18 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
19 none, I think for the record, at the
20 meeting there will be amendment proposed
21 to both the bill and resolution. To the
22 bill, it would deal with making the
23 ballot question go on in November. It
24 originally was slated for April of this
25 year.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 Being no further questions,
3 Ms. Marconi, will you please read the
4 next bill and resolution before us.

5 THE CLERK: Bill No. 120531, an
6 ordinance providing for the submission to
7 the qualified electors of the City of
8 Philadelphia of the proposal set forth in
9 a Resolution approved by Council
10 proposing an amendment of The
11 Philadelphia Home Rule Charter regulating
12 to a preference in civil service
13 regulations for the grandchildren of
14 firefighters or police officers who were
15 killed or who died in the line of duty;
16 and authorizing the appropriate officers
17 to publish notice and to make
18 arrangements for the special election.

19 Resolution 120540, resolution
20 proposing an amendment to The
21 Philadelphia Home Rule Charter to provide
22 for a preference in civil service
23 regulations for the grandchildren of
24 firefighters or police officers who were
25 killed or who died in the line of duty,

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 and providing for the submission of the
3 amendment to the electors of
4 Philadelphia.

5 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
6 you.

7 If I first could call
8 Commissioner Ayers from the Fire
9 Department and Captain Healy from the
10 Police Department to come forward and
11 give their testimony, please.

12 (Witnesses approached witness
13 table.)

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Good
15 morning to you both.

16 COMMISSIONER AYERS: Good
17 morning.

18 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Please
19 identify yourself and proceed.

20 COMMISSIONER AYERS: Good
21 morning, Chairman Greenlee and members of
22 the Committee on Law and Government. I
23 am Fire Commissioner Lloyd Ayers and I am
24 here to testify in support of Bill 120531
25 and Resolution No. 120540.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 The Philadelphia Fire

3 Department is proud to honor the memory
4 of our members who gave their lives to
5 ensure the public safety of our citizens.

6 The Philadelphia Fire Department will
7 soon have the privilege of honoring the
8 memory of Firefighter John J. Redmond,
9 who gave his life on January 29, 1994.

10 Firefighter Redmond's son, John J.
11 Redmond, Jr., will be the first legacy
12 considered for this position of
13 firefighter under the current bill.
14 Firefighter Redmond perished on his son's
15 seventh birthday.

16 Therefore, the Philadelphia
17 Fire Department fully supports Councilman
18 Brian O'Neill's bill proposing an
19 amendment to the Philadelphia Home Rule
20 Charter to extend preference in civil
21 service regulations for the second
22 generation of firefighters and police
23 officers who were killed or who died in
24 the line of duty. The sacrifice and
25 dedication of these members should always

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 be remembered and honored.

3 Thank you.

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
5 you, Commissioner.

6 Captain.

7 CAPTAIN HEALY: Good morning,
8 Chairman Greenlee and other members of
9 the Committee on Law and Government. My
10 name is Captain Fran Healy and I'm here
11 to testify on behalf of Commissioner
12 Ramsey to express the Administration's
13 support of Bill No. 120531 and Resolution
14 No. 120540.

15 The City of Philadelphia has
16 always been steeped in a history of honor
17 and service by members of the
18 Philadelphia Police Department which
19 regularly crosses generations. In
20 Philadelphia, like no other city, the
21 calling to serve is often a family
22 affair. Ask any Philadelphia police
23 officer and you're certain to hear that a
24 parent or grandparent had served or may
25 still be serving. For many police

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 families, service is a time-honored
3 tradition, not just a job.

4 And it's for this very reason
5 that the Philadelphia Police Department
6 fully supports this resolution to provide
7 a preference in entrance examinations for
8 the grandchildren of officers killed or
9 who die in the line of duty.

10 The ability to serve as a
11 police officer is not a right, but a
12 privilege. The very least we can do --
13 the City of Philadelphia can do for its
14 fallen heroes is to help continue their
15 legacy of service for their children and
16 grandchildren. It's a very small token
17 in the larger scheme, but to those
18 families who have lost so much, it's
19 everything. The opportunity to serve in
20 the footsteps of a fallen father or
21 grandfather and to carry on the tradition
22 of honor and service is quite simply
23 beyond words. Again, a simple token, but
24 the least we can do for our fallen
25 heroes.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 So, again, the Philadelphia
3 Police Department fully supports and
4 would respectfully request passage of
5 this resolution. And I'm here available
6 to answer any questions you may have.

7 Thank you.

8 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
9 you, Captain.

10 Any questions for either the
11 Commissioner or Captain Healy?

12 (No response.)

13 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
14 none, thank you both very much for
15 coming.

16 And the record will reflect
17 that Councilman O'Brien, a member of the
18 Committee, is also present.

19 The other two witnesses we have
20 are Tim McShea from Local 22 and Gene
21 Blagmond from the Fraternal Order of
22 Police.

23 Mr. Gault, we have Mr. McShea's
24 name down here, but obviously you're very
25 welcome to come.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 (Witnesses approached witness
3 table.)

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:

5 Mr. Gault, why don't you start. Identify
6 yourself for the record and proceed.

7 MR. GAULT: Hi. I'm Bill
8 Gault. I represent the Philadelphia
9 Firefighters and Medics Union, and I'm
10 here to ask you's to be in favor of this
11 bill, please.

12 Under civil service regulation,
13 applicants for police and firefighters
14 who have a parent who died in the line of
15 duty can have ten points added to their
16 final score, provided they pass all the
17 parts of the examination. We would like
18 to have that provision extended to the
19 grandchildren also.

20 Many of the grandchildren of
21 fallen police officers and firefighters
22 may have had little or no recollection of
23 their grandparent, only the knowledge
24 that they were a police officer or
25 firefighter. They may hear stories that

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 were passed along about their job or even
3 heroic actions that their grandparents
4 may have performed. This leaves an
5 indelible impression on the person's
6 mind, which sometimes can lead them to a
7 decision to be like grand-pop or
8 grand-mom and join the department. These
9 people, along with the children of police
10 officers and firefighters, are the best
11 candidates for the job. It's in their
12 blood.

13 Besides, the City owes the
14 family of officers killed in the line of
15 duty a debt of gratitude, a debt which
16 can never be fully paid. The
17 grandchildren have been deprived of the
18 love and compassion only a grandparent
19 can give and, therefore, deserve some
20 consideration when they choose to serve
21 their city as their deceased loved one
22 has.

23 We hope the Council can
24 understand and provide the grandchildren
25 of fallen police and firefighters the

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 same courtesy that is provided to their
3 children. Therefore, we humbly request
4 that City Council support Councilman
5 O'Neill's Bill 120531 and Resolution
6 120540.

7 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
8 you.

9 MR. GAULT: Go ahead, Gene.

10 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: I'm
11 sorry. Did you want to say anything
12 else?

13 MR. GAULT: No. This is just
14 good business. And now it's pretty
15 commonplace that grandparents are raising
16 children, and it's just a good thing to
17 do here.

18 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Okay.
19 Thank you.

20 MR. GAULT: Thank you.

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE:
22 Mr. Blagmond.

23 MR. BLAGMOND: My name is
24 Eugene Blagmond. I'm representing the
25 Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge No. 5

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 here in Philadelphia.

3 Good morning, Chairman
4 Greenlee, members of the Committee on Law
5 and Government and staff. I am honored
6 to appear and present testimony this
7 morning on behalf of FOP President John
8 McNesby, the 14,500 members of the
9 Fraternal Order of Police, Lodge 5, of
10 which approximately 6,300 are actively
11 serving as police officers.

12 The men and women we represent
13 are very unique in that they leave their
14 homes and families on a daily basis, head
15 to their districts and units not knowing
16 if they will return home at the end of
17 their shift. Philadelphia police
18 officers make a lot of sacrifices in
19 their chosen profession, and they can be
20 injured or killed in the performance of
21 their jobs.

22 The dedication and
23 professionalism of our police officers is
24 second to none, and the public, the
25 citizenry and this legislative body has

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 noted this, particularly in the last
3 several years.

4 What is not as well known or
5 discussed is the sacrifice, dedication
6 and commitment demanded of the families
7 of Philadelphia police officers. On a
8 daily basis, the spouses, children and
9 other family members of our police
10 officers watch these dedicated public
11 servants depart for work in the morning,
12 in the afternoon and in the middle of the
13 night, wondering if this is the night
14 they will receive the dreaded knock on
15 the door telling them of their loved
16 one's supreme sacrifice.

17 I have heard many a police
18 officer talk about the danger of the job
19 we do. Almost to an officer, I have
20 heard this reframe, If something happens
21 to me, please make sure my wife and
22 children are taken care of.

23 We have numerous Philadelphia
24 police officers currently serving our
25 department who are the children or

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 grandchildren of police officers who have
3 been killed or died in the line of duty.
4 The fact that these individuals would
5 embark on such a noble career -- we're
6 all realizing the potential costs better
7 than any other -- is an incredible
8 testament to their dedication to the
9 citizens of Philadelphia.

10 Accordingly, it is only fitting
11 that this bill before your Committee
12 regarding the preference for
13 grandchildren of fallen heroes on civil
14 service examinations be added as an
15 amendment to the Home Rule Charter.

16 Thank you for providing me the
17 opportunity to present testimony on this
18 very worthwhile bill.

19 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Thank
20 you, Mr. Blagmond.

21 Any questions for the
22 witnesses?

23 (No response.)

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
25 none, thank you both very much for

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.
2 coming.

3 MR. GAULT: Thank you, sirs.

4 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Anyone
5 else here to testify on this bill and
6 resolution?

7 (No response.)

8 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Seeing
9 none, that concludes the hearing of the
10 Committee on Law and Government. We will
11 now go into our public meeting.

12 The Chair recognizes Councilman
13 Green for an amendment to Bill No.
14 120108.

15 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you,
16 Mr. Chairman. I move that Bill No.
17 120108 be amended. The amendments have
18 been circulated.

19 (Duly seconded.)

20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Been
21 moved and seconded.

22 All in favor?

23 (Aye.)

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

25 (No response.)

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
3 none, the amendment is adopted.

4 Once again, Councilman Green.

5 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you,
6 Mr. Chairman. The amendments have been
7 circulated to Bill No. 120119 and -- I'm
8 sorry. Mr. Chairman, I move that Bill
9 No. 120108, as amended, be approved
10 favorably by this Committee, with a
11 suspension of the rules so that it may be
12 heard at our next session of Council.

13 (Duly seconded.)

14 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
15 moved and seconded.

16 All in favor?

17 (Aye.)

18 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

19 (No response.)

20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
21 none, Bill No. 120108, as amended,
22 reported out of Committee with a
23 favorable recommendation, with a rules
24 suspension for reading at our next
25 session of Council.

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 The Chair now recognizes
3 Councilman Green on an amendment to
4 Resolution 120119.

5 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you,
6 Mr. Chairman. The amendments to the
7 resolution have been circulated. I move
8 that the amendments to 120119 be
9 approved.

10 (Duly seconded.)

11 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
12 moved and seconded.

13 All in favor?

14 (Aye.)

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

16 (No response.)

17 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
18 none, the amendment to Resolution 120119
19 is approved.

20 Once again, Councilman Green.

21 COUNCILMAN GREEN: Thank you,
22 Mr. Chairman. I move that Resolution No.
23 120119 be reported from this Committee
24 with a favorable recommendation.

25 (Duly seconded.)

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Been

3 moved and seconded.

4 All in favor?

5 (Aye.)

6 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

7 (No response.)

8 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing

9 none, Resolution 120119 is reported out
10 of this Committee with a favorable
11 recommendation.

12 The Chair now recognizes
13 Councilman Kenney on Bill No. 120531.

14 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
15 Mr. Chairman. I move that Bill No.
16 120531 be reported out of this Committee
17 favorably and a request for rules
18 suspension to allow first reading at our
19 next Council session.

20 (Duly seconded.)

21 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
22 moved and seconded.

23 All in favor?

24 (Aye.)

25 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 (No response.)

3 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
4 none, Bill No. 120531 is reported out of
5 this Committee favorably, with a rules
6 suspension to allow for first reading at
7 our next session of Council.

8 Once again, Councilman Kenney
9 on the resolution.

10 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: Thank you,
11 Mr. Chairman. I move that Resolution
12 120531 be approved and reported out of
13 Committee.

14 (Duly seconded.)

15 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Well, the
16 resolution is 120540.

17 COUNCILMAN KENNEY: 120540 be
18 reported out of Committee favorably.

19 (Duly seconded.)

20 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: It's been
21 moved and seconded.

22 All in favor?

23 (Aye.)

24 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Opposed?

25 (No response.)

1 6/18/12 - LAW & GOV. - BILLS 120531, etc.

2 COUNCILMAN GREENLEE: Hearing
3 none, Resolution 120540 is reported out
4 of this Committee with a favorable
5 recommendation.

6 There being no further business
7 before the Committee, thank you all for
8 your participation.

9 (Committee on Law and
10 Government concluded at 10:35 a.m.)

11 - - -

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the
proceedings, evidence and objections are
contained fully and accurately in the
stenographic notes taken by me upon the
foregoing matter on June 18, 2012, and that
this is a true and correct transcript of same.

MICHELE L. MURPHY
RPR-Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of this
transcript does not apply to any reproduction
of the same by any means, unless under the
direct control and/or supervision of the
certifying reporter.)

A ability 17:10 accurately 31:5 achieve 6:7 achieving 6:24 actions 20:3 actively 22:10 add 8:16 added 19:15 24:14 addition 5:17 additional 11:24 Administration 5:10 6:17,22 9:9 10:5 Administration's 16:12 adopted 26:3 affair 16:22 afternoon 23:12 ahead 21:9 allow 6:11 28:18 29:6 alongside 5:23 amended 25:17 26:9,21 amendment 2:18 3:3,10 4:2,9,12 12:20 13:10,20 14:3 15:19 24:15 25:13 26:3 27:3,18 amendments 25:17 26:6 27:6 27:8 amount 8:6 amounts 5:23 analysis 5:5 and/or 31:22 annual 2:21,21 3:6,6 4:4,5,21 5:3 answer 7:2 18:6 appear 22:6 appearing 11:2 applauds 6:18 applicants 19:13	apply 31:20 appreciate 12:4 approached 3:17 14:12 19:2 appropriate 2:23 13:16 appropriations 4:23 5:6 approved 2:17 8:25 13:9 26:9 27:9,19 29:12 approving 9:6 approximately 22:10 April 12:24 arrangements 2:24 13:18 authorizes 8:25 authorizing 2:23 13:16 available 9:20,22 9:24 10:3 18:5 Aye 25:23 26:17 27:14 28:5,24 29:23 Ayers 14:8,16,20 14:23 a.m 1:7 30:10	25:13,16 26:7,8 26:21 28:13,15 29:4 bills 1:14 3:1 4:1 4:17 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1 birthday 15:15 Blagmond 18:21 21:22,23,24 24:20 blood 20:12 BOBBY 1:11 body 22:25 Brian 15:18 budget 2:21,22 3:6,7,22 4:5,5 4:21,24 5:3,13 5:21,23,24 7:10 7:14,22 8:5,9,11 9:19 budgeting 4:22 5:11 6:8,12,15 6:21 9:12,23 budgets 4:16 burden 11:24 business 21:14 30:6	cash 11:22 certain 16:23 CERTIFICATE 31:2 certification 31:19 CERTIFY 31:3 certifying 31:23 cetera 10:2 Chair 1:10 2:7,9 7:5 25:12 27:2 28:12 Chairman 10:18 14:21 16:8 22:3 25:16 26:6,8 27:6,22 28:15 29:11 Charter 2:19 3:4 4:3 9:21 13:11 13:21 15:20 24:15 checking 10:21 Chief 6:9 8:19 children 17:15 20:9 21:3,16 23:8,22,25 choose 20:20 chosen 22:19 circulated 25:18 26:7 27:7 citizenry 22:25 citizens 15:5 24:9 city 1:2,6 2:15 3:20 5:14,22 6:4 6:6,9,11 9:25 11:3 13:7 16:15 16:20 17:13 20:13,21 21:4 City's 3:22 civil 13:12,22 15:20 19:12 24:13 class 7:18 classes 9:19 clear 8:24 9:10 CLERK 2:13 13:5	close 8:5,7 come 9:3 14:10 18:25 coming 18:15 25:2 Commissioner 14:8,16,20,23 16:5,11 18:11 commitment 23:6 Committee 1:3 2:4,7 14:22 16:9 18:18 22:4 24:11 25:10 26:10,22 27:23 28:10,16 29:5 29:13,18 30:4,7 30:9 commonplace 21:15 compassion 20:18 complete 4:22 5:5 completely 6:21 concluded 30:10 concludes 6:25 25:9 consideration 4:18 20:20 considered 15:12 consisting 2:6 contained 31:5 continue 6:23 17:14 contractors 10:24 control 31:22 corporation 10:2 correct 9:4,6 31:8 cost 4:25 5:15 costs 5:16 24:6 cost-benefit 5:5 Council 1:2 2:17 3:21 9:2 13:9 20:23 21:4 26:12,25 28:19 29:7 Councilman 1:10 1:10,11,11,12 2:2,6,8,8 3:12
---	--	---	---	---

3:20 7:3,5,7,15 7:20 8:7,12,14 8:23 9:15,16,17 10:9,10,15,16 10:17 11:13 12:8,9,13,18 14:5,14,18 15:17 16:4 18:8 18:13,17 19:4 21:4,7,10,18,21 24:19,24 25:4,8 25:12,15,20,24 26:2,4,5,14,18 26:20 27:3,5,11 27:15,17,20,21 28:2,6,8,13,14 28:21,25 29:3,8 29:10,15,17,20 29:24 30:2 country 9:25 courtesy 21:2 creation 9:2 crosses 16:19 current 15:13 currently 7:11 23:24	departments 5:23 6:6 deprived 20:17 deserve 20:19 detail 7:10,14,18 7:22 8:5,11 detailing 5:15 details 5:21 die 17:9 died 13:15,25 15:23 19:14 24:3 difference 11:17 difficult 6:14 9:8 direct 5:15 31:22 directly 10:20 Director 3:8,22 4:7,20 discussed 23:5 districts 22:15 door 11:15 23:15 dreaded 23:14 due 6:20 Duly 25:19 26:13 27:10,25 28:20 29:14,19 duty 13:15,25 15:24 17:9 19:15 20:15 24:3	19:17 examinations 17:7 24:14 example 4:18 Excel 8:6,8 exploring 6:10 express 16:12 extend 15:20 extended 19:18 extremely 6:13	6:22 9:13 fitting 24:10 Five 5:18,19 footsteps 17:20 FOP 22:7 foregoing 31:7,19 forth 2:16 4:10 9:21 13:8 forward 14:10 Fran 16:10 Fraternal 18:21 21:25 22:9 full 9:10 fully 6:11,14 15:17 17:6 18:3 20:16 31:5 function 4:23 funding 6:2 7:18 further 8:13 12:11 13:2 30:6 FY14 10:13	22:1 23:1 24:1 25:1 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1 Government 1:3 2:4 14:22 16:9 22:5 25:10 30:10 grandchildren 13:13,23 17:8 17:16 19:19,20 20:17,24 24:2 24:13 grandfather 17:21 grandparent 16:24 19:23 20:18 grandparents 20:3 21:15 grand-mom 20:8 grand-pop 20:7 gratitude 20:15 Great 10:7 Green 1:10 2:8 7:6,7,15,20 8:7 8:12 9:16,17 10:9 25:13,15 26:4,5 27:3,5,20 27:21 Greenlee 1:10 2:2 2:9 3:12,20 7:3 8:14,23 9:15 10:10,15 12:9 12:13,18 14:5 14:14,18,21 16:4,8 18:8,13 19:4 21:7,10,18 21:21 22:4 24:19,24 25:4,8 25:20,24 26:2 26:14,18,20 27:11,15,17 28:2,6,8,21,25 29:3,15,20,24 30:2 guess 10:23
D daily 22:14 23:8 danger 23:18 data 4:22,25 5:9 6:5 deal 12:22 debt 20:15,15 deceased 20:21 decision 20:7 dedicated 23:10 dedication 15:25 22:22 23:5 24:8 demand 23:6 DENNIS 1:12 depart 23:11 department 5:16 7:19 14:9,10 15:3,6,17 16:18 17:5 18:3 20:8 23:25	E eight 9:19 either 18:10 election 2:25 13:18 electors 2:15 3:11 4:9 13:7 14:3 embark 24:5 employees 11:21 ensure 15:5 entrance 17:7 et 10:2 Eugene 21:24 everybody 2:3 evidence 31:4 examination	F fact 24:4 fallen 17:14,20,24 19:21 20:25 24:13 families 17:2,18 22:14 23:6 family 16:21 20:14 23:9 father 17:20 favor 19:10 25:22 26:16 27:13 28:4,23 29:22 favorable 26:23 27:24 28:10 30:4 favorably 26:10 28:17 29:5,18 final 19:16 Finance 3:8 4:6 4:19 find 11:18 fine 11:16 Fire 14:8,23 15:2 15:6,17 firefighter 15:8 15:10,13,14 19:25 firefighters 13:14 13:24 15:22 19:9,13,21 20:10,25 first 2:11 5:18 14:7 15:11 28:18 29:6 Fiscal 5:13,24,25	G Gault 18:23 19:5 19:7,8 21:9,13 21:20 25:3 Gene 18:20 21:9 generation 15:22 generations 16:19 give 12:3 14:11 20:19 go 12:23 21:9 25:11 goal 5:12 6:7,18 6:23 9:11,18 goes 7:17 8:24 going 11:15 good 2:2 3:19 14:14,16,20 16:7 21:14,16 22:3 GOV 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1 15:1 16:1 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1	

H half 11:4 Hall 1:6 happens 23:20 happy 7:2 12:7 head 22:14 Healy 14:9 16:7 16:10 18:11 hear 16:23 19:25 heard 23:17,20 26:12 hearing 25:9 26:2 26:20 27:17 28:8 29:3 30:2 help 11:23 17:14 Henon 1:11 2:8 heroes 17:14,25 24:13 heroic 20:3 Hi 19:7 history 16:16 home 2:19 3:4 4:2 13:11,21 15:19 22:16 24:15 homes 22:14 honor 15:3 16:16 17:22 honored 16:2 22:5 honoring 15:7 hope 20:23 hours 11:2 humbly 21:3	individuals 24:4 information 2:20 3:5,9 4:3,7,14 7:17 9:4,20,23 injured 22:20 Innovation 6:9 8:19 Inspection 11:25 integrate 6:14 investment 5:8 issue 9:6 item 7:17 J J 15:8,10 JAMES 1:11 January 15:9 job 11:19 17:3 20:2,11 23:18 jobs 22:21 John 15:8,10 22:7 join 20:8 Jr 15:11 June 1:7 31:7 K K 1:10 Kenney 1:11 2:6 10:16,17 11:13 12:8 28:13,14 29:8,10,17 killed 13:15,25 15:23 17:8 20:14 22:20 24:3 kind 11:4 12:3 knock 23:14 know 10:4 knowing 22:15 knowledge 19:23 known 23:4 L L 31:14 larger 17:17 Lastly 6:4 Law 1:3 2:4 3:1 4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1	8:1 9:1 10:1 11:1 12:1 13:1 14:1,22 15:1 16:1,9 17:1 18:1 19:1 20:1 21:1 22:1,4 23:1 24:1 25:1,10 26:1 27:1 28:1 29:1 30:1,9 lead 20:6 leave 22:13 leaves 20:4 left 11:15 legacy 15:11 17:15 legislative 22:25 License 11:24 licensed 11:19 life 15:9 line 7:17 8:21 13:15,25 15:24 17:9 19:14 20:14 24:3 little 19:22 lives 15:4 Lloyd 14:23 Local 18:20 Lodge 21:25 22:9 lost 17:18 lot 22:18 love 20:18 loved 20:21 23:15 lukewarmly 11:4 L&I 10:25 11:3 11:10,18 M maintained 7:11 7:14 maintaining 7:21 major 9:24,25 making 12:22 Manager's 6:4 Marconi 2:10 13:3 matter 31:7 Mayor's 5:17	McNesby 22:8 McShea 18:20 McShea's 18:23 mean 7:16 8:3,4 means 9:11 31:21 measure 11:5 measures 5:20,21 5:22 6:2,6,16 Medics 19:9 meeting 12:20 25:11 member 18:17 members 3:20 14:21 15:4,25 16:8,17 22:4,8 23:9 memory 15:3,8 men 22:12 MICHELE 31:14 middle 23:12 mind 20:6 Monday 1:7 money 11:15 morning 2:3 3:19 14:15,17,21 16:7 22:3,7 23:11 move 6:11,20 25:16 26:8 27:7 27:22 28:15 29:11 moved 25:21 26:15 27:12 28:3,22 29:21 moving 5:11 MURPHY 31:14 N name 3:21 16:10 18:24 21:23 near 11:11 need 7:25 8:2 needs 7:24 never 20:16 new 6:10,12 8:2 night 23:13,13 noble 24:5	noted 23:2 notes 31:6 notice 2:24 13:17 November 12:23 numerous 23:23 O objections 31:4 obviously 18:24 offhand 8:3 officer 6:9 8:19 16:23 17:11 19:24 23:18,19 officers 2:23 13:14,16,24 15:23 17:8 19:21 20:10,14 22:11,18,23 23:7,10,24 24:2 Okay 10:7,14 21:18 Once 26:4 27:20 29:8 one's 23:16 operating 2:21 3:6 4:4,16,21 opinion 11:17 opportunity 17:19 24:17 Opposed 25:24 26:18 27:15 28:6,25 29:24 Order 18:21 21:25 22:9 ordinance 2:14 4:21 5:4 9:2 10:22 13:6 originally 12:24 owes 20:13 O'Brien 1:12 18:17 O'Neill's 15:18 21:5 P pages 8:4 paid 20:16 parent 16:24
--	--	---	---	---

19:14 participation 30:8 particularly 23:2 parts 19:17 pass 19:16 passage 18:4 passed 10:22 20:2 payback 5:9 paying 11:20,21 Pennsylvania 1:6 people 20:9 performance 4:25 5:20,20,22 6:2,5 6:15 22:20 performance-b... 9:12 performed 20:4 period 6:3 perished 15:14 permitted 11:3 person's 20:5 perspective 9:18 Philadelphia 1:2 1:6 2:16,19 3:4 3:11 4:2,10 13:8 13:11,21 14:4 15:2,6,16,19 16:15,18,20,22 17:5,13 18:2 19:8 22:2,17 23:7,23 24:9 Plan 5:18,19 please 2:10,12 13:3 14:11,18 19:11 23:21 point 10:11 points 19:15 police 13:14,24 14:10 15:22 16:18,22,25 17:5,11 18:3,22 19:13,21,24 20:9,25 21:25 22:9,11,17,23 23:7,9,17,24 24:2	position 15:12 possible 9:14 potential 24:6 preference 13:12 13:22 15:20 17:7 24:12 prepared 7:12 present 1:9 18:18 22:6 24:17 President 22:7 pretty 21:14 privilege 15:7 17:12 probably 7:25,25 proceed 3:16 14:19 19:6 proceedings 31:4 produced 5:14 profession 22:19 professionalism 22:23 program 2:22 3:7 4:6 5:4,7 program-based 4:22 5:11 6:8,15 6:21 project 5:6 proposal 2:16 13:8 proposed 4:11,20 4:24 5:3,7,17,24 12:20 proposes 3:25 proposing 2:18 3:3 13:10,20 15:18 proud 15:3 provide 3:8 4:7 13:21 17:6 20:24 provided 2:20 3:5 4:4 19:16 21:2 provides 4:8 providing 2:14 3:9 13:6 14:2 24:16 provision 19:18	public 15:5 22:24 23:10 25:11 31:15 publish 2:24 13:17 purchase 6:10 purpose 11:14 put 4:11 9:7,21 Q qualified 2:15 13:7 Quarterly 6:4 question 4:11 8:24 10:13 12:23 questions 7:2 8:13 12:11 13:2 18:6 18:10 24:21 quite 17:22 quorum 2:6 R raising 21:15 Ramsey 16:12 read 2:11 13:3 reader 5:25 reading 26:24 28:18 29:6 ready 10:11,12 realizing 24:6 reason 8:18 17:4 reasoning 11:6 Rebecca 3:21 receive 23:14 recognizes 7:5 25:12 27:2 28:12 recollection 19:22 recommendation 26:23 27:24 28:11 30:5 record 2:5 3:15 7:9 12:19 18:16 19:6 Redmond 15:8,11 15:14 Redmond's 15:10	reflect 18:16 reframe 23:20 regarding 24:12 regularly 16:19 regulating 13:11 regulation 19:12 regulations 13:13 13:23 15:21 relating 2:19 3:4 4:3 remembered 16:2 report 5:15 6:5 reported 26:22 27:23 28:9,16 29:4,12,18 30:3 reporter 31:23 represent 19:8 22:12 representing 21:24 reproduction 31:20 request 11:10 18:4 21:3 28:17 require 4:19 5:2 10:23 required 4:14 requires 4:6 requiring 3:8 resolution 2:11,17 3:2,2,23,25 6:18 6:19 9:7 12:16 12:21 13:4,9,19 13:19 14:25 16:13 17:6 18:5 21:5 25:6 27:4,7 27:18,22 28:9 29:9,11,16 30:3 RESOLUTIONS 1:14 respectfully 18:4 respectively 4:17 response 12:12,17 18:12 24:23 25:7,25 26:19 27:16 28:7 29:2 29:25	responsibility 10:20 return 5:8 22:16 Revenue 11:16 Rhynhart 3:14,19 3:21 7:4,13,16 7:23 8:10,16 9:5 10:7,14 11:12 12:6,14 right 10:13 11:7 11:16 17:11 Room 1:6 RPR-Notary 31:15 Rule 2:19 3:4 4:2 13:11,21 15:19 24:15 rules 26:11,23 28:17 29:5 S sacrifice 15:24 23:5,16 sacrifices 22:18 safety 15:5 says 11:16 scheme 17:17 score 19:16 second 5:13 15:21 22:24 seconded 25:19 25:21 26:13,15 27:10,12,25 28:3,20,22 29:14,19,21 section 5:19 see 5:25 11:10 Seeing 12:13,18 18:13 24:24 25:8 self-report 10:24 self-reporting 11:23 separate 5:14 servants 23:11 serve 16:21 17:10 17:19 20:20
---	--	---	---	---

served 16:24	21:4	thousand 8:4,8	14:12 19:2	30:3
service 13:12,22	supported 11:5	Tim 18:20	witnesses 14:12	13 5:13,17,25
15:21 16:17	supports 5:10	time 6:20 8:22	18:19 19:2	14 6:22 9:13
17:2,15,22	15:17 17:6 18:3	10:12 11:4	24:22	14,500 22:8
19:12 24:14	supreme 23:16	time-honored	women 22:12	17 5:18
serving 16:25	sure 11:12 12:6	17:2	wondering 23:13	18 1:7 31:7
22:11 23:24	23:21	timing 10:4	words 17:23	1952 9:22
session 26:12,25	suspension 26:11	titled 5:20	work 6:23 9:14	1994 15:9
28:19 29:7	26:24 28:18	today 2:12 4:18	11:2 23:11	
set 2:16 13:8	29:6	7:10	working 8:18	2
sets 4:10	system 6:10 8:2	token 17:16,23	worthwhile 24:18	2012 1:7 31:7
seventh 15:15		tools 9:22		22 18:20
several-year 6:3	T	tradition 17:3,21	Y	24 10:25
shift 22:17	table 3:18 14:13	transcript 31:8,20	year 5:13,18,19	29 15:9
simple 17:23	19:3	trended 6:3	10:23 12:25	
simply 17:22	taken 5:12 23:22	Trends 5:21	years 23:3	4
sirs 25:3	31:6	true 31:8	you's 19:10	400 1:6
site 10:24 11:2,19	talk 23:18	two 18:19		5
situation 11:11	taxes 11:20	type 4:13	0	5 21:25 22:9
six-year 5:4	technology 6:13		08 5:24	
slated 12:24	8:20 11:8	U	1	6
small 17:16	telling 23:15	ultimate 10:4	10:15 1:7	6,300 22:10
son 15:10	ten 19:15	understand 20:24	10:35 30:10	6/18/12 3:1 4:1
son's 15:14	terms 9:22 10:3	understanding	119 3:25	5:1 6:1 7:1 8:1
soon 15:7	testament 24:8	9:10	120108 1:14 2:13	9:1 10:1 11:1
sorry 21:11 26:8	testify 3:23 12:16	Union 19:9	3:24 4:10 25:14	12:1 13:1 14:1
special 2:25 13:18	14:24 16:11	unique 22:13	25:17 26:9,21	15:1 16:1 17:1
Specifics 4:13	25:5	units 22:15	120109 4:15,19	18:1 19:1 20:1
spouses 23:8	testimony 6:25	update 9:19 12:3	120110 4:15 5:2	21:1 22:1 23:1
spreadsheets 7:21	14:11 22:6	upgrade 8:19	120119 1:14 3:2	24:1 25:1 26:1
7:24 8:6,8	24:17	upgrades 10:21	3:23 6:18 26:7	27:1 28:1 29:1
staff 22:5	thank 3:12 7:3,7		27:4,8,18,23	30:1
stage 11:18	8:12,14 9:17	V	28:9	
start 19:5	10:9,17 12:8,9	Vice 2:7	120531 1:14 3:1	
status 10:21	12:14 14:5 16:3	voters 4:12	4:1 5:1 6:1 7:1	
steeped 16:16	16:4 18:7,8,14		8:1 9:1 10:1	
stenographic 31:6	21:7,19,20	W	11:1 12:1 13:1,5	
steps 5:12	24:16,19,25	want 21:11	14:1,24 15:1	
stories 19:25	25:3,15 26:5	watch 23:10	16:1,13 17:1	
submission 2:14	27:5,21 28:14	way 4:18 6:12	18:1 19:1 20:1	
3:10 4:8 5:2	29:10 30:7	8:21 11:9	21:1,5 22:1 23:1	
13:6 14:2	Thanks 10:8	welcome 18:25	24:1 25:1 26:1	
submit 4:20	thing 21:16	we'll 9:14	27:1 28:1,13,16	
subs 10:25	things 7:8 8:20	we're 8:18,22	29:1,4,12 30:1	
supervision 31:22	10:22	24:5	120540 1:14 13:19	
support 6:19 9:9	think 8:17 9:5,13	wife 23:21	14:25 16:14	
14:24 16:13	12:19	WILLIAM 1:10	21:6 29:16,17	
		witness 3:17,17		